
Brecknockshire
Meeting Venue
Committee Room - Neuadd 
Brycheiniog, Brecon, Powys

Meeting date
Monday, 7 March 2016

Meeting time
9.30 am

For further information please contact

County Hall
Llandrindod Wells

Powys
LD1 5LG

Shane Thomas

shanet@powys.gov.uk

Issue Date:  1st March 2016

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES BS1-2016

To receive apologies for absence.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING BS2-2016

To authorise the Chairman to sign the minutes of the previous meeting of the Committee 
held on Monday 21st December 2015 a correct record. 
(Pages 3 - 8)

3. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS BS3-2016

To receive announcements from the Chairman. 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BS4-2016

To receive declarations of interest from Members in relation to items on the agenda to be 
discussed. 

5. FYI BRECON (9.45 - 10.15) BS5-2016

To receive a presentation in relation to FYI Brecon.

6. BUSINESS SERVICES/CASHLESS SYSTEM FOR 
SCHOOLS PROJECT - UPDATE (10.15 - 10.45) 

BS6-2016

To receive an update in relation to activities being undertaken by Business Services 
including the Cashless System for Schools Project. 

Public Document Pack



7. REPORTS FROM AND QUESTIONS TO CABINET 
PORTFOLIO HOLDERS (10.45) 

BS7-2016

To receive reports from, and put questions to, Cabinet Portfolio Holders:

7.1. Councillor John Powell - Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Environment and 
Sustainability

7.2. Councillor Wynne Jones - Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Finance
Written update report provided (apologies presented to the meeting). 
(Pages 9 - 12)

8. REPORTS FROM AND QUESTIONS TO MEMBERS 
SERVING ON OUTSIDE BODIES 

BS8-2016

To receive reports from, and put questions to, Members serving on outside bodies.

8.1. Local Development Plan Working Group
To consider appointing to a shire positon on the LDP Working Group. 

9. CORRESPONDENCE BS9-2016

To receive items of correspondence. 

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING BS10-2016

To note the date of the next meeting – 20th June 2016.



 1

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BRECKNOCKSHIRE COMMITTEE
HELD AT NEUADD BRYCHEINIOG, BRECON ON

MONDAY 21st DECEMBER 2015

Present: County Councillor H. Williams – Chairman

County Councillor P.J. Ashton, M.B.J. Davies, R.M. Harris, G.G. Hopkins, E.T. Morgan, 
J.G. Morris, D.W. Meredith, D.R. Price, D.A. Thomas, D.G. Thomas and W.D. Powell. 

In attendance: 

Councillor Darren Mayor, Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Property, Building and Housing – via 
video link
Councillor Graham Brown, Deputy Leader/Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Commissioning and 
Children’s Services via. video link

David Powell – Strategic Director: Resources, Yvette Kottanu – Senior Investigator, Simon 
Inkson, Head of Housing and Shane Thomas – Clerk. 

1. APOLOGIES BS46-2015 

Apologies for absence were accepted from County Councillors S.C. Davies, M.J. 
Dorrance, L. Fitzpatrick, J.C. Holmes, S. McNicholas, G.W. Ratcliffe, T.J. Van-Rees, S.L. 
Williams and E.A. York.

2. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING – 21st SEPTEMBER 2015 BS47-2015 
 
The Chairman was authorised to sign the minutes of the previous meeting of the 
Committee held on Monday 21st September 2015 as a correct record.  During discussion 
particular reference was made to:

a. Brecon Amenity Site – having been informed that the Strategic Director: Place (Paul 
Griffiths) visited the site following the previous meeting members requested 
additional information in relation to:

 The role of staff at the site and whether they are there to supervise and/or to 
help when residents visit to dispose of waste

 Whether the site had been risk assessed and in particular the area where steep 
steps have to be climbed for access in some areas

 Arrangements for helping residents with disabilities

The Chairman agreed to visit the site with the local member to view issues. 

b. Lake View Close Footway, Llangors – the local member thanked members for their 
support in including the programme with in the programme for future works

c. Local Development Plan Working Group – given the number of apologies 
presented to today’s meeting it was agreed that appointing to a vacant position on 
the LDP Working Group should be a matter for the next meeting.  In the interim the 

Page 3

BS2-2015



 2

clerk would e-mail Brecknockshire members with details for forthcoming meetings 
with a request that members interested in attending should advise him direct

3. CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENTS BS48-2015 

The Chairman reported that he had received an e-mail from representatives of Blaubeuren 
regarding their intention to visit as part of exchange arrangements in 2016.  The contact 
included an expression of interested in attending the 2016 National Eisteddfod.  Members 
would be kept advised and updated on arrangements. 

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST BS49-2015 

There were no declarations of interest from members relating to items to be discussed on 
the agenda. 

5. CORPORATE FRAUD BS50-2015 

Members welcomed Yvonne Kottaun, Senior Investigator to the meeting to provide an 
update in relation to Corporate Fraud.  During discussion and update particular reference 
was made to:

a. Cost to the Tax Payer – public sector fraud has been estimated to cost the UK 
Government in the region of £21 billion per annum (money which could be used to 
support public service delivery). The mind-set amongst people should be that fraud is 
unacceptable

b. Team/Unit – the Powys team is in its infancy but is already proving to be very effective.  
Since April 2015 the team had identified £2,700 per week of previously fraudulently 
claimed monies which were no longer being paid (£144k per annum) out and had 
avoided paying out an additional £171k that would have been fraudulently paid out or 
granted in exemptions.  It’s expected that the work of the team moving forward would 
become more important

c. Fraud Teams – since the introduction of SFIS an increasing number of authorities don’t 
retain fraud teams and seem to accept fraud or believe they do not have any fraud.  
There could be scope for the Powys team to provide services for other authorities 
and/or public bodies

d. Intent to De-fraud – there are a range of sanctions that could be used to recover 
payments.  Cases need to be evidence based.  The Authority could exercise due 
discretion

e. Single Occupancy – it was felt by members that highlighting prosecutions and actions 
taken in relation to Single Occupancy benefit fraud could act as a very powerful 
deterrent.  Members would welcome more publicity

f. Links – the fraud team work closely with those involved in providing support and 
benefits.  There are links with housing and adult social care which have proven very 
positive.  Where there are suspicions or concerns they are investigated

g. Crime Prosecution Service (CPS) – it is widely recognised that there’s a backlog of 
cases with the CPS.  The Authority’s legal team could act to address fraud and recover 
costs etc. 

h. Elected Members – Councillors could play a very important part in helping identify 
fraud and with linking with communities to improve understandings

Page 4



 3

i. Fraud Awareness – it would be the intention to roll out an e-learning package

Members wanting to discuss issues were encouraged to contact Yvette and/or her team.  
Members thanked Yvette for a very helpful and informative presentation and discussion 
session. 

6. SYRIAN REFUGEE CRISIS BS51-2015 

Members welcomed Simon Inkson, Head of Housing and Councillor Darren Mayor, 
Cabinet Portfolio Holder to the meeting for this item of business. During discussion 
particular reference was made to:

a. Welsh Government/Powys Response – the Welsh Government had planned for a 
national response to the crisis. Wales would accept up to 20,000 refugees over five 
years.  Powys had committed to playing its part

b. Accepting Areas – there would be two Powys accepting areas (Ystradgynlais and 
Newtown).  The areas had been chosen because of a number of factors that would 
support the settling in of four to five Syrian families in each area

c. Engagement with Communities – it would be very important to listen to the views of 
accepting communities, to respond to any queries and to put in place sound 
arrangements for allowing for there to be open and frank discussion about matters 
prior to families moving to communities.  Longer term contact would also be 
important

d. Multi-Agency Approach – the inaugural meeting of a multi-agency Powys group to 
plan for and oversee arrangements for settling refugee families had been held on 13th 
November and there had been a media release after the meeting. That night there 
was significant media attention regarding the Paris concert bombing 

e. Home Office Funding – the Home Office would provide funding for five years. The 
initial grant would be £8k per person payable to each public authority in an accepting 
area.  There would be a sliding payment scale over the five year period

f. Leave to Remain – each refugee would be granted leave to remain status
g. Selection – there would be a selection process.  It would be for accepting areas to 

determine who gets accepted for settlement in their areas.  Members would welcome 
details of the process

h. Community Activity – officers had been made aware areas where there are very 
proactive communities who recognise the importance of supporting efforts.  Members 
praised the work to-date of a Hay, Brecon and Telford Support Group.  The Head of 
Housing reported that he would like to build on the goodwill of communities and look 
to use community resource in a more co-ordinated way to support the accepting 
areas.  The Multi-Agency Planning Group would give further consideration regarding 
a more strategic approach to community support

i. Negative Statements – there had been a number of negative statements made via. 
e-mail and using social media.  Council had committed to supporting the crisis and in 
playing its part to home refugees who are fleeing conflict and in fear for their lives

7. REPORTS FROM AND QUESTIONS TO CABINET PORTFOLIO 
HOLDERS

B52-2015 

Members welcomed the opportunity to receive reports from, and to put questions to, 
Cabinet Portfolio Holders.

Page 5



 4

7.1 Councillor Darren Mayor, Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Property, Buildings and 
Housing

Having been provided with a written activity brief particular reference was made to:

a. Joint Venture Company – expressions of interest were being sought.  It is not 
clear what the appetite to engage with the Authority to deliver services in 
partnership would be.  Hopefully the Authority would make an appointment in 
June 2016 with the intention that the company (which would manage the 
Authority’s stock, provide repair and maintenance services and provide a 
building function and design service) would come into operation in November 
2016.  There could be scope to include schools within the arrangement but that 
would sit outside of the initial tender

b. Brecon Learning Campus – there would be a period of non-activity whilst the 
Assembly determines its position regarding plans and processes.  It would be 
important for due process to be followed

c. Housing and the Brecon Beacons National Park – authorities are meeting 
with the BBNP to consider arrangements for an agreement to provide affordable 
housing in the area.  The proposal to-date would be that the BBNP holds the 
grant and would work with neighbouring authorities to deliver on the 
requirement.  There would be a further meeting of a liaison group on 14th 
January to consider matters. The Head of Housing would report back on 
relevant issues after the 14th January meeting and call a meeting to update 
members on matters.  A report outlining positions would be provided prior to the 
meeting for members to consider

d. Glossary – future briefings from the Portfolio Holder to the shire committee 
would include a glossary of terms to help clarify abbreviations

7.2 Councillor Graham Brown, Deputy Leader/Cabinet Portfolio Holder: 
Commissioning and Procurement/Children’s Services 

Having been provided with a written activity brief particular reference was made to:

a. Commercial Services Team – the team had been operating for a year and had 
been very proactive.  Members were surprised to note the spend which had 
been avoided via. the non-essential spend freeze

b. Cleaning Consortium – a member expressed concern in relation to the Brecon 
High School consortium not having received contract details regarding a 
potential local arrangement for providing a school cleaning service

c. Leisure Service Transfer – there had been no significant issues following the 
transfer of leisure services to freedom leisure.  Any review of levels of provision 
would be undertaken with the involvement of the Authority and not in isolation

d. Youth Service Review – a review was being undertaken.   There could be 
scope to use the YFC to deliver a wider range of youth services.  The current 
arrangement with the YFC being that the Authority provides funding to support 
club organiser and admin positions.  The proposal would be to bring the posts 
under the umbrella of the Authority’s staff and provide grant funding to support 

Page 6



 5

other areas of activity.  Officers continue to engage with the YFC federation.  
Members urged caution if considering to move to provide youth services from 
schools when looking to support young people who take issue with school 
settings

e. Brecon Cultural Hub – there had been a delay in progress which had recently 
been resolved, the project would move forward

f.       Neuadd Maldwyn – a member expressed concern regarding the cost of 
bedding plants used at Neuadd Maldwyn and public perception at a time when 
savings are having to be made.  There could have been a much cheaper, 
alternative option

g. Community Delivery/Transfer of Services – a member requested that the 
Authority tracks increases in precept rates which would be needed to raise 
money to deliver services locally (services which had previously been delivered 
by the Council)

h. Library Service – operating a library service is a statutory function.  The 
service had been identified for savings in the 2017/18 financial year.  Members 
expect that same levels of service would be retained in 2016/17.  The Strategic 
Director would clarify the position

Having noted that there had been no update report in relation to the operation of 
Children’s Services the Portfolio Holder agreed to provide an activity update to the 
next meeting. 

8. REPORTS FROM AND QUESTIONS TO MEMBERS SERVING ON 
OUTSIDE BODIES

BS53-2015

There were no reports from or questions to members serving on outside bodies

9. CORRESPONDENCE BS54-2015

There were no items of correspondence.

10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING BS45-2015

The next meeting would be held on Monday 7th March 2015 and quarterly thereafter (with 
the exception of the May Annual General Meeting).   Items for the March meeting would 
include an update in relation to FYI Brecon (Councillor Powell would provide contact 
information to the clerk for linking).

.
County Councillor H. Williams

Chairman

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Brecknockshire

Monday 7th March 2016

Portfolio Holder Update

Councillor Wynne Jones – Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Finance

Dear Members,

May I firstly apologise for not being able to attend your meeting to report to you and to 
answer your questions. This is because I shall be on my way to London to attend a 
meeting with the Wales Office to raise and discuss some important matters for our 
County. I therefore have compiled this report for you in order to keep you updated. 
Please raise any questions on the report or regarding my Portfolio responsibility that 
you so may wish, and I will provide immediate answers via Shane, which will be 
circulated to all ‘Shire’ Members. 

1. Financial Overview

With regards to having an overview of the financial and economic factors that 
may affect our Council, we get almost daily information from our advisers Capita 
Economics, and they are read by the Director of Resources and by myself, so 
that we form a joint view of the economic factors and risks that we face, and it 
means I can advise the cabinet with good knowledge and confidence. Currently, 
even though we have just taken a 3 year budget plan through County Council, 
we remain of the view that global and UK economic factors, present us with 
considerable risks going forward. The Chancellor found an additional £27billion 
(mostly from a change in formula that they use to estimate VAT receipts going 
forward) and he included this in the measures announced in the Autumn 
Statement on 27th November. This was a huge risk, and one that looks like it is 
going to badly backfire on him, as it seems clear that the receipts forecast will 
not materialise and that his balance of payments deficit target will not be met by 
some £12 billion. This leaves him two options for his March budget, either 
introduce more severe austerity measures or to increase taxation. It is felt that a 
move to increase austerity is the one he will chose, which means that the 4% 
assumption we have made in 3 year plan for period 17/19, could well be at risk, 
and the figures we are working on for 19/20 ( 7/8 million savings required ) would 
also have to be increased. There is also a risk now that austerity may well go on 
beyond 2020.

2. Windfarm ‘fighting fund’ update.

As Members will be aware, that the Council set up a fighting fund for fighting the 
proposals for windfarms and associated hub and pylons. The arrangement was 
that  the upfront costs would be met from the Councils reserves and that the 
reserves would be replenished by an annual 0.5% levy on the Council Tax.

Page 9

BS7-2015b



I hereby provide the current financial details for Members perusal.

Total Budget allocation ……………………£2,733,400.00

Current spend ……………………………...£2,353,444.15

Repayments so far.

14/15    £259,956

15/16    £562,755…………Total……………£822,711.00

Planned repayments.

16/17       Nil

17/18    £560,000

18/19    £280,000

19/20    £280,000… Total planned……     £1,120,00.00

It is therefore clear that payments will continue for period 2020/22 at least and 
longer if there is further expenditure up to the allocated funding.

3. Cabinet responsibility for Performance.

On 1st February the Executive Leader decided to combine the Finance Portfolio 
with the responsibility for Performance (previously the responsibility of Cllr. Phil 
Pritchard), as it is felt by the Leader and Officers that this is a much better fit, 
especially with the ensuing Corporate Assessment ( see section 3)

There is clearly a need to strengthen our performance monitoring and challenge, 
and to that end there will be an immediate re-introduction of Cabinet Performance 
Monitoring Meetings (first one held on 1st March). I are currently considering 
further future changes to the monitoring and challenge process at Powys County 
Council.

I have also moved to ensure that all Service Improvements Plans have clear and 
measureable outcomes. The SIP’s will go before Scrutiny on 14th and 15th March, 
and I ensure that suggested changes by Scrutiny are closely followed through 
the system. I shall report regularly to Members of Council on future changes and 
in the lead up to the Corporate Assessment.

4. Corporate Assessment.

The Wales Audit Office is currently undertaking a Corporate Assessment of all 
22 Councils in a 4 year cycle.  In Powys we are at the back end of the assessment 
cycle and are due to be assessed in November this year .Basically the 
assessment looks at most aspects of the Council (including the Public Service 
Board) and assesses its ability to improve. The assessment will look at the 
performance against indicators ( All Wales and internal), the financial 
performance, governance( including Cabinet, Scrutiny and Audit), decision 

Page 10



making, risk management, working with partners and partnerships and public 
consultations etc.,.

 As PH for Performance I understand I are supposed to also act as the Lead 
Portfolio Holder in this process. I are in the process of reading all the Corporate 
Assessments from other Councils that have been assessed earlier in the process 
and are also planning to visit Ceredigion County Council as part of the process. 
There is much work to do as we move forward, but this is work that we need to 
be to improve as a Council and not just planning for the WAO assessment 
process. Initially in many aspects I feel we are well placed and certainly much 
better placed than several other Councils have been. However, there are some 
significant gaps that need addressing, and one of those is to immediately improve 
our Corporate Planning.

There is also a small group that has been set up to oversee the planning for the 
ensuing Corporate Assessment, and this is called CAST, it is chaired by the 
Resources Director and consists of the relevant Officers and myself as Portfolio 
Holder responsible.

The assessment is so wide spread it will involve the entire Council including all 
of the Members, so to that end I can inform Members that there will be a Member 
Development session the Corporate Assessment on 15th June ( along with 
Treasury Management).

5. Business Rates Retail rebate scheme.

Members will be fully aware that in the last couple of years we have been 
provided with funding by Welsh Government to offer a scheme that provides 
rebates of up to £1,500 to qualifying small businesses in the retail sector.  This 
year the funding was over £800k in total and we are well on course to allocating 
all of that, which provides useful additional support to the economy of Powys. 
Unfortunately I have to inform Members, that we have been notified by WG, that 
the scheme will NOT be continued for next year.

Wynne
Cllr.Wynne Jones
Portfolio Holder for Finance.

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	BS2-2015 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	BS7-2015b Councillor Wynne Jones - Cabinet Portfolio Holder: Finance

